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City of Seattle

Request For Proposal (RFP) # CTY-3131
Customer Information System (CIS) Solution Implementation
Addendum
Update 04/29/13

The following is additional information regarding RFP #CTY-3131, titled Customer Information System (CIS) Solution Implementation released on April 2, 2013.  The Proposal due date remains unchanged.
This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.   Vendors should review the Q&A carefully as some of the responses have been reworded/clarified.  These written Q&A's take precedence over any verbal Q&A.

From:  Carmalinda Vargas, Sr. Buyer

City of Seattle Purchasing

Phone:  206-615-1123; Fax 206-233-5155

Email Address:  Carmalinda.vargas@seattle.gov
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Response
	RFP Additions/Revisions/
Deletions

	1 
	04/04/13
	04/04/13
	a) Is the scope restricted to Oracle products and consulting services?
b) Is the City interested in considering a different vendor solution?
	a) Yes, as referenced in the RFP.

b) No.  


	

	2 
	04/09/13
	04/10/13
	Does the scope of the RFP involve deployment of Oracle MDM and Smart Grid Gateway?  (criticality 1)
	Yes.  
	

	3 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	From the functional requirement sheet, we see some of the requirements pointing to the solution using Mobile Workforce Management (MWM) application. 
a) Is Oracle MWM implementation included in the current scope 
b) Is it Ok to propose an interim solution for the current CIS scope?
	a) No.   
b) The MWM is not within the scope of this RFP.  
	

	4 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	Does the City expect to deploy a single CC&B instance running on a common database for both SPU and SCL? 
	Yes, that is the intent.
	

	5 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	Is Banner the only source of customer data information that needs to be converted or are there some other systems that you think needs to be extracted from a source and converted?
	There will likely be other systems but Banner is the primary source of information. 
	

	6 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	I believe you have Metavante and you also indicated that you’re moving to Kubra to some extent but CSS could also do elements that Kubra is doing, is there an end game in mind where you expect CCSS to accomplish where Kubra ends?
 
	Kubra has a total contract life through 2021, if the City exercises all their contract extension options.

Kubra provides service to the entire City as well as City Light (SCL)/Seattle Public Utilities (SPU).  It will be required as part of the package to exist with Kubra.

 However, if you see an opportunity that the City should be aware of because of redundant functionality, you can let us know in your response.
	 

	7 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	Service Order – What will reside in WAMS and MAXIMO vs. what will be brought within the products being implemented?
	There are a lot of redundant pieces of functionality between Work and Asset Management Systems.  Service Order is an area where these systems come together.

We may have many needs for Service Requests, for example, sending work out for Technical Metering to read the meters, or making sure the customer has new service, etc.  

The value the System Integrator will bring, will be in identifying how to utilize the functionality within the collection of the system and to deliver the business needs of the City.
	

	8 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	Will there be other major initiatives, on the business side or I.T. side that will be competing with the same resources that this project will be relying upon?
	The City has many initiatives going forward, however this is an important and one of the most critical systems for the City.  For this reason we will be staffing this project accordingly.
	

	9 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	As you think about your own internal resources, could there be an obvious conflict with someone’s time to support this project?
	The project was built knowing that we had to have a business case on resources that would be needed for this project; therefore we are not going to be resource short.
	

	10 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	Implementation Services – The opening paragraph states you can deviate from the order listed but from a comparative stand-point is it easier for you if we reply in the same order as listed so it is easier to make comparison more easily? 
	Some vendors would have a very different methodology that may not fit to the numbering scheme that we have outlined.   So as not to be prescriptive, we have allowed the Vendor to organize and present their own work based on the information provided in the Implementation Service Document.
	

	11 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	Implementation Services – With respect to Business Process Redesign:

Since this is a fixed priced response and you’re looking for fit-gap analysis and possible redesign or optimization of business process, how do we estimate what the scope of redesigns may be? 

Do we take the Oracle URM’s and estimate that or do you make a certain percentage of redesign? 
Do you have any guidance on this aspect?
	Looking at the URM is a good place to start.  If you need to qualify some assumptions in your RFP that would be helpful.  
As a Utility, we’re looking for an opportunity to utilize the processes in the System to their fullest extent and to deliver the best practice. 
The City expects that they will likely need to change its existing business process to align with that software.   
	

	12 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	Functional Requirements – 

We see some requirements pointing to solutions using Mobile Workforce Management.  Is Oracle MWM implementation included in current scope or is it okay to propose an interim solution for the CIS scope?
	Mobile Workforce Management is not within the scope of the implementation.  
The City welcomes you to propose something you would like the City to entertain, but you need to keep the costs separate. 
	

	13 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	There are some reporting requirements on Mobile Workforce, scheduling and other associated fields in Excel.  Is it pure reports that need the existing system to CIS?
	Yes, there are requirements regarding work and where it is in the queue.  

For example, if you are using your billing system and you know that you have a work scheduled for a customer, and you’re also interfacing with Work and Asset Management System or to your Maximo System you want your Call Center representative to be able to tell the customer where it is in the queue and that is the type of scheduling reporting.
	

	14 
	04/10/13
	04/10/13
	Can you provide the contact information to the Equal Compliance Coordinator?
	Steven Larson at (206) 684-4529 or steven.larson@seattle.gov 
	

	15 
	04/11/13
	04/18/13
	Would the City consider a proposal for just the MDM/SGG and related CSS/BI components as a stand-alone proposal so that it may be combined with any other preferred SI for the CIS?

a)  If so, are there minimum requirements related to MDM (v2?) implementations that the City requires?
	The City Is not looking for a partial solution.  The City is looking for a Prime Vendor to implement the Customer Information System.  Any vendor who may have a partial solution is encouraged to partner with a prime vendor.


	

	16 
	04/11/13
	04/12/13
	In 8.0 SOW Interfaces.doc, the integration with MDMS states that “all MDMS interfaces are owned by SCL.” Does that mean that SIs should not include estimates for the configuration/setup/etc of these interfaces to MDM (e.g., setting up and testing the SGG MV90 Adapter or the integration package between MDM & CCB)?
	The reference “all MDMS interfaces are owned by SCL” is meant to distinguish the fact that the SCL will be the utility requiring the MDM system.  SPU does not plan on using the MDM system for water meters. 


	

	17 
	04/11/13
	04/12/13
	In 8.1 SOW Overview.doc, we should assume that the City will also license the MDM to CCB Integration package, correct?
	Yes.  

You should assume the City will license the MDM to CCB integration package.  
	

	18 
	04/11/13
	4/16/13
	In order to provide a thorough and complete response to the RFP, would the City consider a two-week extension to the due date? 
	No extensions will be granted.
	

	19 
	04/18/13
	04/22/13
	Section 8-SOW, Interfaces:
Our understanding is that UCM is supposed to be the document management system for both SCL and SPU and will be available for integration with CC&B. UCM will also have all the imaging archive, documents etc migrated from the legacy system. Please confirm if this assumption is correct.  
	The solution should include interfacing to ECM (formerly known as Universal Content Management) as specified in the RFP interface attachment in Section 8.   It will interface to the CIS components shared by both SCL and SPU.   Design elements, such as where documents should be stored as required by the CIS solution, should be part of the design scope for the CIS Implementation project.  
	

	20 
	04/18/13
	04/22/13
	Section 13 – Functional Requirements, 4.1.10:
Does SCL have plans to implement pre-paid metering in the future? 

Is there an expectation to implement prepaid metering for the current CIS solution?
	Pre-paid metering may be an option SCL considers in the future.  Implementing prepaid metering is not an expectation for the current CIS solution.
	

	21 
	04/18/13
	04/22/13
	Section 13 – Functional Requirements, General:
There is a mention of Exhibit A in the functional Requirements sheet. Please share the Exhibit A document.
	The reference to Exhibit A is for the attachment in Section 8.  8.0 SOW Interfaces.doc
	

	22 
	04/18/13
	04/22/13
	We understand from the RFP that SCL plans to deploy AMI system in 2015. Would you be able to share the roadmap for this deployment?  
Is it planned to deploy MDM for scalar meters and then go-live with interval data once AMI is in place?
	We are unable to share a roadmap for this deployment.  We do expect MDM to work for scalar meters and interval data.  It would be planned to deploy MDM for scalar meters first, although we do have some pilot areas for interval data.
	

	23 
	04/18/13
	04/22/13
	Section 13 – Functional Requirements, 11.2.48:

The following requirement -> "Does your CIS Solution provide a customer the ability to update the following via the web with proper security access: > Responses to specific messages (e.g., access information)?” 
Please clarify the requirement, What are the different messages, and who is expected to respond to those messages.
	An example of a message and response is as follow:  

If a customer changed a combination on a lock or a gate access code and City staff can no longer access the property, the customer could be notified to update their access information using the web self-service features.
	

	24 
	04/18/13
	04/22/13
	Section 13 – Functional Requirements, 11.2.57:

What are the types of forms that are required and also the number of forms required?

	A type of a form may be one that enables a customer to request a change in service, and a move in move out request.   The number of forms to provide best practice customer service via the web is unknown at this time.
	

	25 
	04/18/13
	04/22/13
	Section 13 – Functional Requirements, 11.2.70:

Oracle Utilities CSS application has rate comparison module which allows customer to compare their existing rate with a new eligible rate based on historic usage. Are any other rate-based programs that are being considered here?
	No, but there is an assumption that the customer might be eligible for multiple rate programs other than the one they are currently on.  
	

	26 
	04/18/13
	04/22/13
	Section 13 – Functional Requirements, 11.5.15 & 11.5.16:
Would SCL/SPU want to maintain a separate branding (separate look and feel for SCL and SPU) for the external customers when using the CSS functionality?   For example if a SCL customer logs in to the web portal and lands into the Oracle CSS landing page the look and feel of the landing page should it be same for both SCL and SPU customers or you would prefer to keep it same?  
	A consistent look and feel for both utilities is desired, while providing information specific to the services the external customer may want to access.   
Messages, and specific web based content should be able to address distinct service types, communication or options may be very different for different water or electric based services.
	

	27 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Will Interfaces with GIS, Assessor Records, Permitting, and Temperature Zone be done in Real Time or Batch? 
	This will be a design decision.
	

	28 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Does the City of Seattle, within the domain of SCL and SPU, have Change Management or Organizational Transformation professionals on staff? If yes, how many will be made available to support this initiative, and in what role (FT/PT)?


	We expect to staff the project to include this function, mentored by the SI.  

Please include your recommendation in your City staffing proposal in Section 8.1 of the Management Response (Functional Team Members).  You can also provide clarification in your change management and business process redesign response.
	

	29 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Does the City of Seattle have a preferred Organizational Change Management Methodology?


	No
	

	30 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Does the City of Seattle, within the domain of SCL and SPU, have documented processes/lessons learned related to prior Change Management/Organizational Transformation initiatives?


	No
	

	31 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Can the City of Seattle provide an org. chart that shows the organizational relationships between SCL and SPU and other impacted Departments?


	We are multiple departments reporting to the Mayor and City Council.  See 
http://www.seattle.gov/directory/
Scroll to City of Seattle Organizational Chart.
	

	32 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Between and within SCL and SPU, do documented business processes follow the same formats and approval conventions?


	 No, they do not currently follow the same formats or approval conventions.  The City desires to have similar formats and approval conventions where possible.  For this project we intend to use BPMN to document business processes.  


	

	33 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	In what capacity will the City of Seattle deploy their training resources to support training during this initiative?


	Training will be provided by the System Integrator, with one City resource supporting each session.  Please make a recommendation for additional staff if you feel they are needed.
	

	34 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Are SCL and SPU employees centrally located for training purposes? If various locations, please indicate # by different physical location/ address. 
	The majority of SCL and SPU staff are located in the Seattle Municipal Tower in downtown Seattle.  Assume all training will be done in downtown Seattle.
	

	35 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	What are the most common and/or preferred training delivery methods at SCL and SPU?
	Classroom instruction, with preprinted manuals or UPK materials as an artifact.
	

	36 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Please identify and define, in terms of hours used, the # of Users and Project Team Members to receive end-user training based on the table provided: 

· Super User (provide # by Department and/or title)
· Primary User (provide # by Department and/or title)

· Casual User (provide # by Department and/or title) (Robert K.)


	The Project Team will be dependent upon your proposal for City project team staffing.  The breakdown for number of users will be ascertained during the development of the training plan, which is a System Integrator deliverable.


	

	37 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Please identify Project Team Members by Role and headcount to receive Project Orientation Training


	This will be based upon your recommendation in your City staffing proposal in Section 8 of the Management Response (Functional and Technical Team Members).
	

	38 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	How many, and in what capacity (FT, PT, Internal Comm., External Comm.) will the City of Seattle provide Communications Resource(s)?
	 Both SCL and SPU have communications resources.  Please recommend staffing levels for this function.
	

	39 
	4/22/13
	4/23/13
	Does City of Seattle anticipate a greater need for either Internal Communications or External Communications, or are both equal?
	We expect greater communication will be needed internally.


	

	40 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	For IVR integration, what is the current method / tools that are employed?
	The current method is direct integration to Banner.  The intent is to use web services and Oracle service bus for future integration.
	

	41 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	For SOA integration, would Seattle be open to acquiring any 3rd party adapters?
	Yes – this will be a design decision.
	

	42 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	What are the integration capabilities for the Motorola Mobility CRM system (files, XML, API)?
	Motorola PremierOne supports the Open311 API, however City/internal integration would be expected to be developed on the Oracle Service Bus.
	

	43 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	Please provide clarification/explanation of the following item.  

14.15.8
Does your CIS Solution provide the ability to track real-time requests for performance?

3

	See example of real time tracking:  

If a commercial customer has specific performance criteria (usage goals such as time of day peak demand, etc.) in their contract, they may want to monitor (on-line, real time) their performance against their contract rates.
	

	44 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13

4/26/13
	The Requirements Matrix (Section 9.0) deals with interfaces. Several refer to an ‘Exhibit A’, Item 9.3 on Cashiering for example. The interface document in the RFP (Section 8) doesn’t mention a cashiering interface, nor do we see Attachment A.  Is there additional information we should have?
	The reference to Exhibit A/Attachment A is for the attachment in Section 8.  (8.0 SOW Interfaces.doc)


There is no additional information regarding these requirements.  There is no planned interface between cashiering into CC&B, as all payments are processed by FAS (see #6    #45).
	

	45 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	Several Interfaces list the Owner as FAS. Is this a shared Financial Services department? Please clarify and explain the relationship between FAS and SCL, SPU as well as FAS’ role on the project.
	SCL and SPU bill customers, but do not receive payments directly.  They are processed by Finance & Administrative Services (FAS).  Files go back and forth between FAS and the billing system.
	

	46 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	Will SCL and SPU look to gain efficiencies by integrating or consolidating business processes? 

	Yes


	

	47 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	Will CC&B/MDM implementation coincide with a limited (pilot) AMI deployment? Please clarify AMI your strategy and timelines.
	AMI pilots may precede or run in parallel with CC&B/MDM.  AMI full implementation is planned after CC&B/MDM implementation.
	

	48 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	Please explain the current Bill, Correspondence Print and Mailing.
	We print separate SCL and SPU bills with DOC1.  Bills and inserts are mailed by SCL.
	

	49 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	a. Please explain SCL and SPU thoughts on Decision Support (Business Intelligence) Reporting and Operational Reporting with the purchase of OU-BI.   

b. SPU currently uses Cognos for some decision support and data warehousing.   Is the strategy to replace Cognos and use OU-BI for all decision support reporting? 

c. The requirements matrix identifies reporting requirements.  Are we to assume that this is the complete list of reporting needs or is there also a reports inventory from Banner or other query tools?
	a. Decision support is important to the City.  We plan to leverage OBIU to the extent that it meets our business needs.

b. SPU may use a Cognos front-end on top of the OBIU datamart for additional ad hoc querying.  The development of SPU’s Cognos capability is outside the scope of this engagement and there is no formal strategy adopted at this time to replace Cognos with OBIU in its entirety.
c. These are the known reporting requirements at this time.  During design, it is quite likely that other requirements will surface.
	

	50 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	How extensively have you used the UPK? Have you utilized it for your WAM or NMS solutions?   If so, please describe how you've used this for training, performance support, or testing functions. How many individuals within the City of Seattle currently create content using the UPK? How frequently do you distribute or publish UPK content? 


	SCL has not used UPK.  

UPK is the training tool of choice for SPU.  SPU has 11 named and actively used licenses, and has created training content for the following applications:

· Enterprise Project Management System (EPMS)

· Construction Contract Management System (CCMS)

· GIS

· Financial Resource Management (FRM)

· Maximo

· Budgeting Planning & Forecasting (BP&F)

Frequency of publication varies, but is usually done annually at a minimum.
	

	51 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	Do you currently deploy computer-based or web-based training programs? If so, please describe functions trained and authoring tools used? 


	Through a 3rd party vendor, SCL has deployed Safety Training in a web-based manner.

SPU deploys UPK training, but doesn’t create computer-based or web-based training materials outside of UPK.
	

	52 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	How do you publish end-user documentation and training materials today? Is it print or online? 


	SCL publishes both print and online materials.

SPU creates via UPK, and produces both print and online materials.
	

	53 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	What is the structure of your training team? Are trainers dedicated to training, and if so, how many trainers do you have? Do your trainers develop and deliver training materials, or do you utilize and on-the-job training approach? 


	As described in Response: Implementation Services #11c, the City expects the Vendor to develop and lead both project team and user training.  For delivery of user training, one City expert will be available to the Vendor trainer to assist.
	

	54 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	Do you have formalized processes for organizational change management within your organization? Do you follow any industry methods / approaches? If so, which are they? 
	No
	

	55 
	4/22/13
	4/24/13
	What has your recent experience been with organizational change? Has it been managed effectively or poorly -- or somewhere in between? Please explain. 


	Varied between projects and Utilities.  The City recognizes the importance of change management, and is expecting the Vendor to mentor our staff for effective organizational change.
	

	56 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 13.6.2:  
Can you clarify the expectation for wireless texting?

	This would be through the use of integrated mobile devices used by the City.
	

	57 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 13.6.3:  
Is there any 3rd party software for voice activated text messages?

	No.
	

	58 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 13.6.5:
Can you clarify the expectations for GPS?
	Can the CIS solution integrate with GPS tracking to provide CIS users current location information for field service reps responding to customer service requests.
	

	59 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 3.1.208:
What are the user defined criteria to release pending field orders?
	examples are -  service order scheduled date, completion of prior required service orders, availability of required crew, etc.
	

	60 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 4.4.36:
For exception handling requirements what are the different scenarios that will trigger a custom trouble code?
	This requirement is asking about the ability for a user to define City specific trouble codes (such as bad dog) in the CIS Solution.
	

	61 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 5.1.4:
Can you define ERU's and ERC's?
	ERU’s = Equivalent Residential Unit - use of water based typically on meter size

ERC’s = Equivalent Residential Connection - use for Sewer based typically on the average daily water consumption of a residence
	

	62 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 5.2.46:
Are there different selected categories under which to re-bill for a manual re-bill vs. a mass cancel/re-bill?
	 The City wants the ability to cancel re-bill a single account or multiple accounts by route or billing cycle.
	

	63 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 7.1.24:
Can you clarify a user calculated adjustment?  What scenario would this fall into?
	For example, an Large Account Manager negotiates a 20% after the fact discount on a bill due to equipment reliability issues.  The Account Manager would manually calculate the discount and enter it as an adjustment on the account.
	

	64 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	General Security Configuration:
How many different security roles are anticipated?
	This will be a design decision.
	

	65 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Can you walk through the expectations for your bill print and online bill view vendor? Is the expectation that bills will be printed by the bill print vendor or the SI solution? Same applies to letters as well.
	We want the solution to allow printing by a bill print vendor or print in-house as currently done.
	

	66 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	We would like information related to the anticipated number of Banner source data file extracts that will be required for data migration.  This information forms part of the proposal estimate as it relates directly to the number of files that will have to be read-in, profiled and converted to the new target system.

A simple list of the data files with an indication of the number of data fields within each would be acceptable. 
	This list is not currently available.  Assume Banner installation for 400k customers, 1.3M services, 3 years of data, plus 50M rows of interval reads.  State sizing assumptions in your response.
	

	67 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement - 1.1.59:
Is this referring to starting service at a new location or creating a new location?
	Starting service at new location.
	

	68 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Functional - 1.1.87:  The City’s Requirement stated.

Does your CIS Solution automatically generate a grease trap inspection when appropriate for that type of business?
When is it appropriate?  At Start Service time?  How do we know the service is subject to grease trap inspection?
	The type of business signals the requirement for a grease trap inspection for any business having a commercial kitchen (e.g., restaurant, school, hospital, etc).  Setup of this signal would be at start service time.  Given the correct business logic, can you automatically generate a request for inspection?
	

	69 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 2.1.8:  
Do you mean taxing jurisdictions?
	Yes
	

	70 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Functional  2.2.136:
What is Distinct Address Point – DAP ID?
	City maintained, globally unique identifier for a premise  address
	

	71 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 5.1.4:
Can you define ERU's and ERC's?
	See Response #61
	

	72 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 5.1.8:

Can you provide more information on “user defined” 
	 An example:

Exclude the high and low month and average the remaining months for the prior 12 month period.
	

	73 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 5.4.4:
We can easily flag it using Bill Calc Line Characteristics, but is there more to this requirement than that?
	 An example:

In many municipalities the Storm Water fee or even the mandatory refuse fee is the only charge that can be transferred to a lien when unpaid.  In other municipalities it could be all charges for services including tax.  The system needs to have the flexibility to handle these options.
	

	74 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 5.4.16
What triggers the fines or penalties based on a flat fee?
	This could include but not limited to, a penalty based on a late payment, or a returned check, or a fine based on denied access to a meter or an expired backflow device inspection.
	

	75 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 5.4.17
What triggers the fines or penalties based on a % of another charge?
	This could be a penalty based on a late payment, or a returned check or an extra strength sewer charge, just to name a few.
	

	76 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 5.4.18
What triggers the fines or penalties based on a quantity rate table?
	This could be a penalty based on a late payment, for example, if the amount past due is less than $100 the late fee is $20 or if the amount past due is between $100 and $200 then the late fee is $30 or a returned check amount that falls into the same above categories.
	

	77 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 5.4.45
Please provide more information about "pay out over the user defined time frame".
	 This refers to the ability to calculate interest on a loan amount and then calculate the proper monthly payments depending on the term of the loan.
	

	78 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 6.2.67
Is this in relation to the previous requirement (6.2.66) for automatic payments or is it general to all payments?
	This is not in relation to 6.2.66.  Payments may be received after the close of the normal business day, but before midnight of the current business day.  Can the CIS solution process a transaction that has a transaction date of today and an effective date of tomorrow?
	

	79 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 6.28.86
What does the City need to allow change based on tender type?
	For example, when the tender type of Check is entered, does the CIS Solution force the tender amount to be equal to or less than the amount due?
	

	80 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Several payment related requirements reference "point of sale" is this simply referring to a cashiering work station that will input payments directly to CC&B, or is this referring to a separate system that data must be interfaced from?  (see requirements 6.2.16-18 and 6.2.104) 
	An over the counter (OTC) payment extract is sent from CCSS to FAS, which includes utility and non-utility payments.  FAS then sends the RPS file back to CCSS with all utility payments.  Replacement of this process is a design decision based upon CC&B native functionality.  Direct debit payments are in scope.  Please see the ACH interface in Section 8 SOW Interfaces.
	

	81 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 6.2.115:
What is a "validation printer"?
	 A validation printer is a printer at a payment station that prints the City deposit validation information on the back of the check making it ready for deposit.
	

	82 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Our understanding is that Pitney Bowes is currently responsible for Address Format Standardization. Please clarify how is Bill Printing, sorting, postal discount as well as mailing of the bills for SCL and SPU done currently.  Is SCL or SPU looking to bring this functionality in-house or the SI is just expected to send the bill information (in the form of a flat file) to a 3rd party for printing, sorting and mailing. 
	We use Pitney Bowes to validate our address format.  We print bills in-house and mail them from the mailroom.  We would like the flexibility to continue this process, or have the option to send bill info to a 3rd party for printing.
	

	83 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	We understand from the RFP SCL/SPU is expecting the SI to provide the Infrastructure setup and sizing of the required hardware to meet the performance requirements. Is SCL/SPU also expecting the SI to setup and build the hardware for example racking and cabling of the hardware, creating the virtual environments, installing the OS, system administration activities, DBA activities etc
	Yes, recommendations for infrastructure setup and sizing are expected.  We are not expecting you to setup and build the hardware environment.  We will perform server administration
	

	84 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 13.1.1
Is this requirement specific to non utility billing or one time billing for new connection services?   Is SCL/SPU looking for billing for the service orders involving equipment, tools, materials, parts etc and hence the unit costs, tax components etc required for these inventory items from WAMs/Maximo?
	This is referring to the ability for a CIS user to know the location and availability of equipment/tools/materials that may be needed to complete a particular work order.
	

	85 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirement 13.1.2
Is this requirement mandatory to be done in CC&B System?
	The City doesn’t expect this function to be executed in CC&B, but is asking if this type of information is available in CC&B via an interface to Oracle WAM and Maximo
	

	86 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	Requirements 13.2.1 - 13.2.4:

These requirements related to time entry, scheduling etc, can be met with WMS and backend systems. Does SCL/SPU want to replicate these functions in CC&B?

	 No.  The City is just looking for this information to be available (possibly through an interface) for proper work order assignment/distribution and tracking.
	

	87 
	4/22/13
	4/26/13
	The implementation of OBIU solution will bring in a Datawarehouse (DWH) solution along with it. From the SOW Interfaces document we see COGNOS already in place. Our assumption is that COGNOS will continue to be the DWH system for SPU and SCL will use the Oracle OBIU DWH system. Please confirm.
	This will be a design decision.
	

	88 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response - pg 9, point 17:
Would you like to roll out the CIS solution to both SCL and SPU at the same time or would you prefer it to be staggered?
	The CIS Solution will be rolled out to both SCL and SPU at the same time.
	

	89 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Section: 3 BACKGROUND- pg 4, par 3:
Would you consider sending a combined bill for both Electricity and Water/Waste water services, as the billing frequency is same (bi-monthly) for both services? 
Is there any government regulation or obligation to send separate bills?
	While this is not planned right now, it could be considered in the future.  There is no government regulation or obligation to send separate bills.
	

	90 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirement 5.4:
Are there any new rate cases planned during the project implementation?  Should we account for any rate structure changes during project?
	Vendor should anticipate that rates can change during the project.
	

	91 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirement  5.2.114:
Does the City have an existing solution to process EDI transactions or does the Vendor need to entirely build the solution for EDI transactions?
	Kubra is our existing solution.
	

	92 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	
	
	

	93 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, page5, point 12:
What is the current document management system that is used for the archival of the Bills and Letters? Does it need to be replaced?
	We currently store bills in ISView (Metavante).  ECM will be the product used in this implementation.
	

	94 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, page3, point 7b:
Do meter reads in the current system directly flow from reading device to Banner or is there any intermediate application? Please elaborate current meter reading solution.
	SPU interfaces with Itron.  

SCL gets daily meter read file from CellNet.  SCL also has intermediate home grown product for optically read meters - this will be unnecessary with CC&B. SCL meter Interval readings are obtained utilizing MV90.
	

	95 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirement 6.2.2:
What type of cashiering or cash desk system does purchaser currently deploy and is this expected to be replaced with the CIS implementation or interface it? Is direct debit payment in scope?
	An over the counter (OTC) payment extract is sent from CCSS to FAS, which includes utility and non-utility payments.  FAS then sends the RPS file back to CCSS with all utility payments.  
Replacement of this process is a design decision based upon CC&B native functionality.  Direct debit payments are in scope.  Please see the ACH interface in Section 8 SOW Interfaces.
	

	96 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Main RFP, Section 4, Objective:
How many calls are received in the call center annually? What is the expectation in level of improvement in Call Center statistics?

	Our Contact Center receives 600,000 calls annually.  The expectation is that that there will be a 15 – 20% improvement in Call Center statistics. 
	

	97 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, page1, point 2b:
Is disaster recovery server in scope? If yes, what's distance between Primary and DR site and what is RPO/RTO/DRP/NRO city is expecting?
	Disaster Recovery design is in scope.  A formal disaster recovery site has yet to be determined.  Recommendations expected from Vendor.
	

	98 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Technical question doc, page1, section2, 1a:
Does City has an enterprise batch scheduling application, or are you looking for SI to suggest one?
	We currently use CA's Autosys product, but are open to suggestions.
	

	99 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Performance, Technical question doc, page4, section4, point1:
Does City has an existing source control system, or are you looking for SI to suggest one?
	We use Microsoft VSS and Subversion.
	

	100 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Minimum qualifications , Section 13:
For which roles are employee names are to be provided in the qualification table?
	Named resources for all roles that participated in qualifying projects.
	

	101 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW:
What testing tools are currently being used at City of Seattle?  (For example, for:  test requirements capturing, test cases design, test automation, performance testing, performance monitoring & defect management etc.). Are you open to implementing new testing tools?
	HP Quality Center.  HP Load Runner.  We are also open to suggestions.
	

	102 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	RFP, 13. Proposal Organization
Is there a dedicated performance test environment available or planned for carrying out performance testing? What would be the scalability of the test environment in comparison to production?
	Subject to your implementation methodology.  We typically do performance testing in our new production environment.  We typically conduct UAT in an environment comparable to production.
	

	103 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	RFP, Objectives:
Is test data available? Will City of Seattle help create and manage the test data?
	As a result of the conversion effort from our current Production system, that data will be available for testing.  The vendor will create and manage the test data from this source.
	

	104 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	8.1 SOW Overview Section 8.12
Do you have any SOA/Web Services testing tool? If yes, which one?
	No.  We are open to suggestions from vendor.
	

	105 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Do you have Service Virtualization implemented? If not, would you be open to explore Service Virtualization approach and implementation plan?
	We do not have it implemented.  We would be open to explore it if the vendor recommended.
	

	106 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Please confirm if integration strategy has been already derived and available for us to refer? Have you planned to implement the solution in Oracle AIA?
	No, the integration strategy has not been derived.  Our expectation is to utilize prebuilt integration packages that Oracle has available, and to extend functionality using AIA techniques.
	

	107 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Please confirm whether you have procured Oracle middleware (AIA) and related PIPs for integration. If so, kindly elaborate the products and adapters that have been procured as per the bill of materials
	Procurement is in process, and these are included.
	

	108 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW overview attachment, page9:
Can we leverage existing Oracle SOA suite and Oracle service bus license for overall new integration solution?

	Yes.
	

	109 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Could we get a list of non-functional requirements for scalability, security and other aspects?
	We have no list of non-functional requirements to provide.  Please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	110 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	In Interfaces Specifications, its mentioned that some of the interfaces are existing. 
1. Could you please provide the details of the integration technology and methods for these implemented interfaces? 

2. We assume these interfaces needs modification as part of this engagement. Please confirm.

3. Is there any other middleware technology (other than Oracle SOA) available in the landscape of SCL? Please let us know.

	1. All existing interfaces are home grown and point-to-point.

2. Yes.

3.  Oracle SOA will be used.
	

	111 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	In the interface list shared, we assume the interfaces having the integration strategy as "P2P" do not need any middleware interfaces.  Please confirm.

Is there any PIP integration planned for PeopleSoft interfaces?
	These are design decisions.
	

	112 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Would all 600 end users and 30 core team members be required to be trained at one single location or across multiple locations?
	See Response #34
	

	113 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Is there a need to develop content using any specific content development tool? We understand that there is an expectation to develop UPK content. If yes, would you be providing the licenses to the development tools?
	Yes.
	

	114 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Besides ILT, is eLearning a preferred mode of training delivery? If yes, do you have a LMS in use?
	Our preferred mode of training delivery is classroom.  We do not have an LMS in use.
	

	115 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	From the information provided, it seems that you are looking at us providing end user training to all 600 users. Please confirm. 
Are you also open to the idea of having your core team or super users trained under Train-The-Trainer model and then they conduct the end user training?
	To confirm, yes, we expect the vendor to train all 600 users.  We will pair an employee with the vendor trainer, but the expectation is that the vendor leads the training.  Super Users and Train-the-Trainer are not under consideration.
	

	116 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Are the current business processes documented? If yes, which process modeling notation is used?
	Some current processes are documented.  Most are a series of swimlane diagrams.
	

	117 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	8.1 SOW Overview - section 8.4:
What is the BPM tool/platform which will be used for process design and management?
	Oracle BPM and SOA Suite
	

	118 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	8.1 SOW Overview - section 8.4:

Has City of Seattle defined their process governance and engagement model?  Do we have process owners assigned to the current set of business processes? If yes, can you brief their responsibilities?
	No.
	

	119 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	8.1 SOW Overview - section 8.4:

Is there any existing document and storage management system which is being used?
	ISView for bills, intent is to use Oracle ECM.
	

	120 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	8.1 SOW Overview - section 8.6 and 8.7:
What is the indicative level of support which will be provided by City of Seattle for impact assessment, change readiness and communication?
	We have asked for Vendor staffing recommendations in the Management Response, Section 8, and for City staffing recommendations in the SOW, Section 18.6.
	

	121 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirements - 10.2.40:
Oracle CC&B and Oracle MDM would be the key data sources for the reporting application. What are the other data sources that need to be integrated from a reporting perspective (either into the warehouse or directly as a source for reporting)? Please specify the data sources along with the information contained in each.
	Reporting is expected from all Oracle application products.  The integration of reporting is a design decision.
	

	122 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	RFP Section 4:

One of the objective states the need for integration with non-Oracle applications like IBM Maximo and Cognos. What type of integration is required?
	For example, Maximo - service orders and customer account changes on near real time basis.
	

	123 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Are there any specific features that the City would like to implement:
a. BI on Mobile

b. Report scheduling

c. Scorecarding and Strategy Management

d. Reports based on Spatial data
	To be finalized in design, dependent upon OBIU's ability to meet business needs.

a. no

b. yes

c. yes

d. tbd
	

	124 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Section 8 (8.0 SOW Interfaces):
City is currently using Cognos. Are Cognos reports generated off the SPU data warehouse? What is the interface expected between the  SPU data warehouse and the to-be CIS system?
	To be determined in design, dependent upon OBIU's ability to meet business needs.
	

	125 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	The functional requirements Excel lists down some of the reporting capabilities required. Example: Does your CIS Solution produce a month end report listing the number of active customers by customer class and service type? Are these expected to be canned reports or is the vendor expected to only enable these reporting scenarios for ad-hoc reporting? On an average how many reports are expected to be created? What could be the breakdown of Static Reports vs. Dynamic reports vs. Adhoc Querying?
	To be determined in design phase - please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	126 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	How are the reports being currently generated? Is migration of any of the historical reports or Cubes data in scope?
	Some reports are currently being generated out of CCSS, and some from our internally developed datamarts (CMART/CIDS).  No historical reports or cubes are expected to be migrated.
	

	127 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	RFP -  Section 3:

Section states that "While CCSS is primarily used by SCL (252 users) and SPU (275 users), a number of users are part of other City departments who use the application for payment receipt and other functions". Will the reporting solution also be accessed by these external users? What is the planned mechanism for access to these reports by 3rd party (other department) users?
	All users will have access to CC&B reports via their system login.
	

	128 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Is performance testing of reporting component in scope? If yes, please share the SLAs for reporting.
	Yes, performance testing of reports is in scope.  Reports are expected to run in a reasonable amount of time.  No SLAs currently exist for reporting.
	

	129 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirement - 10.1.4:
Please give more explanation on what is expected.
	We want the ability to print reports from all environments, not just Production.
	

	130 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirement - 10.1.7:
Please give more explanation on what is expected.
	We would like to review the audit trail left when a user updates, modifies, or deletes a record.
	

	131 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirement - 10.2.2:
Requirement is asking for the ability of the CIS solution to generate reports using one of the reporting tools. Has the decision on reporting tool to be used been made or is the vendor expected to suggest. Please let us know the rationale for this requirement
	Final decisions have not been made - these are design decisions.  However, Oracle suite of tools include a number of canned reports, which we expect to use.
	

	132 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	RFP, Section 3:
Section 3 mentions that SCL and SPU share operational responsibility through a memorandum of agreement. Do these divisions share the same technical infrastructure? Is the vendor required to hold separate requirement workshops, UAT cycles for SCL and SPU?
	The application resides within SCL's infrastructure.  Desktop infrastructure in the utilities are different (see technical response for details).  Some line of business specifics may require separate workshops to design processes.  UAT will be jointly conducted for both SCL and SPU.
	

	133 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirement - 10.1.9:
"Does your CIS Solution allow the user to specify the number of copies per report?" Need more details. Ex: No.of Pages in One dashboard/No of reports in One dashboard.
	This requirement enables a user to print one or more copies of a report.
	

	134 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirement - 10.1.19:
"Does your CIS Solution have a method of easily downloading report data to a PC in any of the following formats:
> Access?"  
	Yes, this requirement expects the user to import data into Access.
	

	135 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Requirement - 10.2.17:
How will this be used?
	We would want to query a note field or a free form text field within the system.
	

	136 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Of the approximate 600 application users, how many are reporting users? How many concurrent users would be expected? What are the availability requirements for the OBI reporting application?
	Of the 600 application users, assume 50% will be reporting users, and 25% would be concurrent users.  The availability requirements for OBIU - core business hours 6am-6pm Monday through Friday.
	

	137 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Does CIS application send data to Downstream systems? If yes, please provide the details.
	Yes.  Please refer to Section 8 of the RFP.  (8.0 SOW Interfaces.doc)
	

	138 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Does the City plan to implement Predictive analytics /sentiment analytics in near future?
	Not in near future.
	

	139 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	How many years of historical data should be available for Analytics? How much percentage of usage?
	We would like to convert 38 months of historical data.  We want access to 100% of this data.
	

	140 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	What is the authentication mechanism planned for the users? Please elaborate on the data visibility requirements. Is data to be restricted on organization hierarchy/region etc.?
	This will be a design decision.


	

	141 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW - section 8.5:
How many Source Systems are in scope for Data Migration ? How Many Source/table/entities are there in these Source Systems? Kindly provide a break up of all the source systems in terms of the format of the data maintained, i.e.., relational, hierarchical, flat files, spreadsheets, etc. Is Banner the only Source System?
	CCSS, ICSB, MeterNet are the main source systems in scope for data migration.  During the design phase, additional sources may be included.  Please state your assumptions in your response.  You may refer to Section 8 of the RFP for additional details.  (8.0 SOW Interfaces.doc)
	

	142 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW - section 8.5:

Please let us know if you have any ETL/DQ tool which can be leveraged for the Data migration activity or we can propose ETL/DQ tool as part of our solution.
	We currently use Oracle Data Integrator.  You may recommend a different solution in your proposal.
	

	143 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Is there any unstructured data, like PDF / Doc files /Scanned Images etc., in migration scope ? What is an approximate number of unstructured data types for e.g. .csv/xls files that need to be considered in scope as migration source? 
	Bills for 400k customers for 38 months are in scope for migration.  In addition, customer correspondence will be migrated.  Likely formats are Word, Excel, pdf files.
	

	144 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Are there any data masking (for data security, privacy & confidentiality purposes) requirements in scope for this engagement?
	Yes, certain sensitive data must be masked, such as SSN.
	

	145 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	How many Source Systems are getting retired? Would the data migration from these Source Systems be in Scope?
	CCSS, ICSB, MeterNet. Data should be migrated from these systems.
	

	146 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Please provide an estimate in number of tables/rows/ GB's of data that needs to be migrated from source system(s) to Oracle CC&B and Oracle MDM.
	Assume Banner installation for 400k customers, 1.3M services, 3 years of data, plus 50M rows of interval reads.  State sizing assumptions in your response.

	

	147 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	Please let us know your reporting requirement on Archived data:

-  Basic / non-standard data access functionality through back-end

- Data Access expected through ILM GUI

- Custom reports / applications which need access to Archived data

 How many users will have access to the archived data?

What is the approximate frequency of accessing the archived data, once a day, multiple times a day etc.
	This will be a design decision.  Please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	148 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, 
Point 7 b):
What are the approximate number of reports required to retrieve the archived data and their frequency?
	This will be a design decision.  Please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	149 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, 
Point 7 b):

Are there any pre-existing data retention business rules available or does customer expect Vendor to conduct workshops and define the same?
	This will be a design decision.  Please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	150 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, 
Point 7 b):

What are the data archival expectations from the vendor, one time archival or archival of data at regular intervals?
	This will be a design decision.  Please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	151 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, 
Point 7 b):

As of now is there any historical data archival requirements? Or the archival requirements discussed in the RFP is a functionality desired to be available in the target environment? If historical data archival is in scope, then what are the systems in scope for archival. Approximate volume of data that needs to be archived?
	This will be a design decision.  Please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	152 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, 
Point 7 b):

Please let us know the list of applications in Archival scope such  as Banner etc. in below format:

Application Name /Description /Database / Data Entities to be Archived/ Size of data to be Archived / No of Reports
Is there any requirement to archive unstructured data i.e. pdf, doc files?
	This will be a design decision.  Please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	153 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, 
Point 7 b):

Does customer have any existing partnerships with any ILM/Archival tool vendor? For e.g. IBM Optim, OpenText, Informatica ILM etc. 
Is customer open to recommendations on a best suited data archival tool?
	No, we do not have any existing partnerships with any ILM/Archival tool vendor.  We are open to recommendations.
	

	154 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, 
Point 7 b):

Please let us know your Archival requirement per the scenarios mentioned below: 

 - Archive the data to manage the Oracle CC&B performance and data growth issue

- Archive data from Legacy systems which are planned to be decommissioned.
	This will be a design decision.  Please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	155 
	4/22/13
	4/27/13
	SOW Implementation Response, 
Point 7 b):

As part of Archival solution, is the City looking for Archiving the data in Relational DB format or compressed format. For Oracle CC&B, do we have any requirement for seamless access i.e. provision should be made so that  CC&B reports can refer to Archive data in seamless manner.
	This will be a design decision.  Please state your assumptions in your response.
	

	156 
	NA
	4/27/13
	
	The City revises the SOW Implementation Services Document.  
	STRIKE & REVISE – SOW IMPLEME NTATION SERVICES, SECTION 7.b
b) Conversion.  Data will be mapped between the legacy systems and the new CIS Solution. The implementer will be solely responsible for the extraction, transformation and loading of all converted data.
Revise:

The implementer will be solely responsible for the transformation and loading of all converted data.  
In all other respects the paragraph remains unchanged.  
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